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BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEP ARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

ANDREW SIMENTAL, III 
7520 SLV Box 
Victorville, CA 92392 

and 

13150 Alta Visa 
Victorville, CA 92392 

Original Phannacy Tec1ulician Registration 
No. TCH 43778 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2847 

DEFAULT DECISION 
AND ORDER 

[Gov. Code, §11520] 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. On or about May 13,2005, Conlplainant Patricia F. Hanis, in her official 

capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board ofPhannacy, Depmilnent ofConsunler Affairs, 

filed Accusation No. 2847 against Andrew Silnental, III (Respondent) before the Board of 

Phanl1acy (Board). 

2. On or about August 12, 2002, the Board issued Original Phannacy 

Tec1ulician Registration No. TCH 43778 to Respondent. The Original Phanl1acy Tec1ulician 

Registration was in full force and effect at all tilnes relevant to the charges brought herein and 

will expire on August 31, 2006, unless renewed. 

3. On or about May 20,2005, Judith A. Banesen, an elnployee of the 
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Depatin1ent of Justice, served by Celiified and First Class Mail a copy of the Accusation No. 

2847, Stateluent to Respondent, Notice of Defense, Request for Discovery, and GovenU11ent 

Code sections 11507.5, 11507.6, and 11507.7 to Respondent's address of record with the Board, 

which was and is 7520 SVL Box, Victorville, CA 92392. The Accusation and related 

docun1ents were also served on Respondent at 13150 Alta Vista, Victorville, CA 92392. A copy 

of the Accusation is attached as Exhibit A, and is incorporated herein by reference. 

4. Service of the Accusation was effective as a luatter of law under the 

provisions of GovenU11ent Code section 11505, subdivision Cc). 

5. On or about May 27,2005, the aforeluentioned docun1ents served at 13150 

Alta Visa, Victorville, CA 92392, were retun1ed by the U.S. Postal Service n1at"ked "Not 

Deliverable as Addressed, Unable to Forward." A copy of the postal returned docun1ents is 

attached as Exhibit A, and is incorporated herein by reference. On or about June 2, 2005, the 

don1estic retun1 receipt nll1nber 7001-0360-0003-2702-5110 served at 7520 SVL Box, 

Victorville, CA 92392 containing the aforenlentioned docunlents was returned by the U.S. Postal 

Service. A copy of the dOlnestic retunl receipt is attached hereto as Exhibit C, and is 

incorporated herein by reference. 

6. GovenU11ent Code section 11506 states, in peliinent pati: 

"Cc) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the nlerits if the respondent 

files a notice of defense, and the notice shall be deenled a specific denial of all parts of the 

accusation not expressly adluitted. Failure to file a notice of defense shall constitute a waiver of 

respondent's right to a hearing, but the agency in its discretion luay neveliheless grant a hearing." 

7. Respondent failed to file a Notice of Defense within 15 days after service 

upon hin1 of the Accusation, and therefore waived his right to a hearing on the 111erits of 

Accusation No. 2847. 

8. Califonlia GovenUllent Code section 11520 states, in peliinent pati: 

fICa) If the respondent either fails to file a notice of defense or to appear at the 

hearing, the agency n1ay take action based upon the respondent's express adnlissions or 

upon other evidence and affidavits n1ay be used as evidence without any notice to 
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respondent. " 

9. Pursuant to its authority under Govel11111ent Code section 11520, the Board 

finds Respondent is in default. The Board will take action without Ulliher hearing and, based on 

Respondent's express adnlissions by way of default and the evidence before it, contained in 

Exhibit A finds that the allegations in Accusation No. 2847 are true. 

10. The total costs for investigation and enforcenlent are $1,452 as of July 8, 

2005. 

DETERMINATION OF ISSUES 

1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Andrew Sinlental, III 

has subjected his Original Pha1111acy Teclll1ician Registration No. TCH 43778 to discipline. 

2. A copy of the Accusation and the related docunlents and Declaration of 

Service are attached. 

3. The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default. 

4. The Board of Pha1111acy is authorized to revoke Respondent's Original 

Pha1111acy Teclll1ician Registration based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation: 

a. Business and Professions Code sections 490 and 4301, subdivision 

(1) - conviction of a substantially related crinle. 

b. Business and Professions Code section 4301, subdivision (h) 

adlllinistration andlor use of controlled substance andlor dangerous dnlg. 

c. Business and Professions Code section 4301, subdivision (p) 

conduct which would warrant denial of license. 

d. Business and Professions Code section 4301, subdivision G) 

violation of statutes regulating controlled substances/dangerous drugs. 

e. Business and Professions Code section 4301, subdivision (0) 

violation of provisions of the Pha1111acy Law. 

III 

III 

III 
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ORDER 


IT IS SO ORDERED that Original Phannacy Teclnlician Registration No. TCH 

43778, heretofore issued to Respondent Andrew Sinlental, III, is revoked. 

Pursuant to Govenunent Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent Inay 

serve a written nlotion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on 

within seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion 

nlay vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the 

statute. 

This Decision shall beconle effective on September 16, 2005 


It is so ORDERED August 17, 2005 


BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORN1A 

By 

Board President 

60085791.wpd 

DOJ docket nU111ber:LA2005500531 

CML (07108/2005) 

Attacln11ents: 

Exhibit A: Accusation No.2847 
Exhibit B: Postal retu111 dOCU111ents 
Exhibit c: D0111estic return receipt 
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BILL LOCK.YER, Atto111ey General 
of the State of Califo111ia 

LINDAL. SUN, State BarNo. 207108 
Deputy Attolney General 

Califo111ia Deparhnent of Justice 
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
Telephone: (213) 897-6375 
Facsilnile: (213) 897-2804 

Atto111eys for COlnplainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPART ME NT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

ANDREW SIMENTAL, III 
7520 SVL Box 
Victorville, CA 92392 

and 

13150 Alta Vista 
Victorville, CA 92392 

Original Phal1nacy Technician Registration 
No. TCH 43778 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2847 

ACCUSATION 

COlnplainant alleges: 


PARTIES 


l. Patricia F. Harris (Conlplainant) brings this Accusation solely in her 

official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board ofPhal1nacy, Departlnent of ConSUlner 

Affairs (Board). 

2. On or about August 12, 2002, the Board issued Original Pha1111acy 

Technician Registration No. TCH 43778 to Andrew Sinlental, III (Respondent). The Original 

Phal1nacy Technician Registration was in full force and effect at all tilnes relevant to the charges 

brought herein and will expire on August 31, 2006, unless renewed. 
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JURISDICTION 

3. This Accusation is brought before the Board, under the authority of the 

following laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise 

indicated. 

4. Section 4300 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that every license 

issued by the Board is subject to discipline, including suspension or revocation. 

5. Section 4301 of the Code states: 

"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of 

unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or nlisrepresentation or 

issued by lnistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not linlited to, any of the 

following: 

"(h) The adlninistering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any 

dangerous drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a lnmmer as to be dangerous or 

injurious to oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to any other person or to 

the public, or to the extent that the use ilnpairs the ability of the person to conduct with safety to 

the public the practice authorized by the license. 

"(j) The violation of any of the statutes of this state or of the United States 

regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs. 

"(1) The conviction of a criIne substmltially related to the qualifications, functions, 

and duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13 

(colIDllencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regUlating controlled 

substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or 

dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the 

record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred. 

The board may inquire into the circlunstances surrounding the cOlnnlissiol1 of the criIne, in order 
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to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances 

or dangerous drugs, to detel111ine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the 

qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty 

or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is deelned to be a conviction within the 

Ineaning of this provision. The board nlay take action when the tillle for appeal has elapsed, or 

the judgnlent of conviction has been affil111ed on appeal or when an order granting probation is 

111ade suspending the ilnposition of sentence, in-espective of a subsequent order under Section 

1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a 

plea ofnot guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or disnlissing the accusation, infol111ation, 

or indictnlent. 

"( 0) Violating or attelllpting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or 

abetting the violation of or conspiling to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of the 

applicable federal and state laws and regulations gove111ing phal111acy, including regulations 

established by the board. 

"(P) Actions or conduct that would have wan-anted denial of a license. " 

6. Section 4060 of the Code states: 

"No person shall possess any controlled substance, except that funlished to a 

person upon the prescription of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, or veterinarian, or flu11ished 

pursuant to a drug order issued by a certified nurse-lnidwife pursuant to Section 2746.51, a nurse 

practitioner pursuant to Section 2836.1, or a physician assistant pursuant to Section 3502.1. This 

section shall not apply to the possession of any controlled substance by a nlanufacturer, 

wholesaler, phal111acy, physician, podiatrist, dentist, veterinmian, certified nurse-nlidwife, nurse 

practitioner, or physician assistant, when in stock in containers con-ect1y labeled with the nmlle 

and address of the supplier or producer. 

"Nothing in this section authorizes a certified nurse-nlidwife, a nurse practitioner, 

or a physician assistant to order his or her own stock of dangerous drugs and devices." 

7. Ca1ifol1ua Code ofRegulations, title 16, section 1770, states: 


"For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility 
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license pursuant to Division 1.5 (conllnencing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions 

Code, a crime or act shall be considered substantially related to the qualifications, functions or 

duties of a licensee or registrant if to a substantial degree it evidences present or potential 

unfitness of a licensee or registrant to perfonn the functions authorized by his license or 

registration in a nlalll1er consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare." 

8. Section 490 of the Code states: 

"A board lnay suspend or revoke a license on the ground that the licensee has been 

convicted of a crilne, if the crinle is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, 

or duties of the business or profession for which the license was issued. A conviction 

within the lneaning of this section nleans a plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction 

following a plea ofnolo contendere. Any action which a board is permitted to take 

following the establislll11ent of a conviction nlay be taken when the tilne for appeal has 

elapsed, or the judgInent of conviction has been affinned on appeal, or when an order 

granting probation is lnade suspending the llnposition of sentence, llTespective of a 

subsequent order under the provisions of Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code." 

9. Section 118, subdivision (b), of the Code provides that the expiration of a 

license shall not deprive the Board ofjurisdiction to proceed with a disciplinary action during the 

period within which the license nlay be renewed, restored, reissued or reinstated. 

10. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board nlay 

request the adlninistrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have cOlnnlitted a violation or 

violations of the licensing act to pay a SUln not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation 

and enforcelnent of the case. 

11. CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES 

A. "Marijuana' is a Schedule I controlled substance as defined in Health and 

Safety Code section 11 054 (d) (13). There is no 1egitilnate indicated use for this dlUg. 

B. "Methanlphetalnine" is a Schedule II controlled substances as defined in 

Health and Safety Code section 11 055( d)(2) and is categorized as a dangerous drug pursuant to 

Business and Professions Code section 4022 of the Code. 
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FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Conviction of Substantially Related Crimes) 

12. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under sections 490, 4300 and 

4301, subdivision (1) on the grounds ofunprofessional conduct in conjunction with Califonlia 

Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, in that Respondent was convicted of crilnes 

substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a pharmacy teclullcian. The 

circulnstances are as follows: 

a. On or about August 25, 2004, Respondent was convicted by the Court on a 

plea of guilty to one count of violating Vehicle Code section 23152(a), a lnisdemeanor, (driving 

while under the influence of an alcoholic beverage andlor a drug), one count of violating Health 

and Safety Code section 11357(b), a lnisdenleanor, (possession of less than 1 oz. oflnarijuana), 

and one count of violating Health and Safety Code section 11364, a nlisdelneanor (possession of 

narcotic paraphenlalia) in the Superior Couli, County of San Benlardino, Victorville District, 

Case No. TVI053801, entitled The People a/the State a/California v. Andrew Sim.ental III 

b. The circulnstances surrounding the convictions are that on or about June 

24,2004, when stopped by the Califonlia Highway Patrol for a traffic violation, Respondent 

displayed objective symptolns of dnlg intoxication. Respondent admitted to the officer that he 

slnoked nlarijuana and lnethaInphetanline earlier that day, and gave the officer two baggies of 

nlarijuana upon request. After the officer conducted a search of Respondent and his vehicle, 

Respondent was found to be in possession of nlethaInphetaInine and glass pipes. 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(AdministerlUse of Controlled SubstancelDangerous Drug) 


13. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under sections 4300 and 4301, 

subdivision (h) of the Code on the grounds of unprofessional conduct, in that Respondent used 

lnarijuana andlor nlethanlphetaIlline in a lnaIUler as to be dangerous to the public. The 

circulnstances are as lnore fully set fOlih in paragraph 12 above. 

III 

III 
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THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Conduct Which Would Warrant Denial of License) 

14. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, 

subdivision (P) of the Code on the grounds of unprofessional conduct, in that Respondent's 

conduct would have warranted denial of his license. The circulnstances are as n'lore fully set 

fOlih in paragraph 12 above. 

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Violating Statutes Regulating Controlled SubstanceslDangerous Drugs) 


15. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under sections 4300 and 4301, 

subdivision (j) of the Code on the grounds of unprofessional conduct for violating Business and 

Professions Code sections 4060 and 4301(h), Vehicle Code section 23152(a), Health and Safety 

Code sections 11364 and 11357(b). The CirCl1111stances are as nl0re fully set fOlih in paragraphs 

12 - 13 above. 

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Violating Provisions of the Phannacy Law) 

16. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, 

subdivision (0) of the Code on the grounds of unprofessional conduct, in that Respondent 

violated provisions and regulations governing phannacy. The circunlstances are as Inore fully set 

forth in paragraphs 12 - 15 above. 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Conlplainant requests that a hearing be held on the Inatters herein 

alleged, and that following the hearing, the Board ofPhannacy issue a decision: 

1. Revoking or suspending Original Pharmacy Technician Registration No. 

TCH 43778, issued to Andrew Silnental, III. 

2. Ordering Andrew Sinlental, III to pay the Board ofPhannacy the 

reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and 

Professions Code section 125.3; 

II I 
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3. Taking such other and further action as deenled necessary and proper. 

DATED: 5113 / 05 

PATRICIAF. HARRIS 
Executive Officer 
Board ofPharnlacy 
Departlnent of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 
COlnplainant 

LA2005500531 

50031146.wpd 

CML (04/11/2005) 
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